1979

Park City Utah Corporation, A Corporation, and  
City Development Corporation, A Corporation v.  
Ensign Company, A Limited Partnership :  
Appellant's Brief

Utah Supreme Court

NATURE OF CASE

This case is here on appeal from a partial summary judgment in the amount of \$98,000 against the defendants, including the defendant Ensign Company.

DISPOSITION BELOW

The Third District Court, Summit County, granted plaintiffs-respondents' motion for partial summary judgment in the sum of \$98,000 on September 6, 1977.

RELIEF SOUGHT ON APPEAL

Defendant-appellant, Ensign Company, seeks a reversal of the partial summary judgment entered below and a remand to the trial court for trial and resolution of disputed issues of fact.

## STATEMENT OF THE FACTS

This case is yet another volume in the saga involving the Park West ski resort, with which this Court is all too familiar.\* It began in a straightforward manner in early 1971 with the filing of a complaint seeking partition of real estate in the Park West resort area, and seeking only such a partition.\*\*

Park West was conceived by Robert Major and Robert Ensign who in January 1967 entered into a contract by which they agreed to acquire land and develop and operate it as a resort, with Major to provide certain services and leaseholds and Ensign to pay for the land acquired. Major was to receive one-half of all land acquired. Subsequently, Major's interests were acquired by plaintiffs and Ensign's interests were acquired by defendants.

As of 1971 sizeable tracts of land were either being acquired or had been acquired from various parties. Much of the land was being acquired under executory real estate contracts. (See, e.g., R. 499, 508, 524-525, 530.)

---

\* Russell v. Park City Utah Corp., 29 Utah 2d 184, 506 P.2d 1274 (1973); Ski Park West, Inc. v. Major-Blakeney Corp., 30 Utah 2d 371, 517 P.2d 1325 (1974); Downey State Bank v. Major-Blakeney Corp., 545 P.2d 507 (Utah 1976); Russell v. Park City Utah Corp., 548 P.2d 889 (Utah 1976); Downey State Bank v. Major-Blakeney Corp., 556 P.2d 1273 (Utah 1976).

\*\* Because of the undue size of the record, appellant furnishes herewith a separate appendix containing the material portions thereof.

However, at least one parcel, acquired from one Nielsen, was purchased by Major-Blakeney Corp.,\* (see, Downey State Bank v. Major-Blakeney Corp., 545 P.2d 507, 508 (Utah 1976)) which gave back a purchase money mortgage (R. 534, App. 50A) thereafter assigned to Downey State Bank (R. 534, App. 50A). This appeal only involves the rights, if any, of the parties following the foreclosure by Downey State Bank\*\* of the mortgage as to a portion of the land originally included within the mortgage.

The complaint, filed in February 1971, alleged the January 1967 agreement (R. 8-18, App. 6-25) between Major and Ensign which called upon Ensign to buy certain property and to allocate one-half of what was bought to Major. As alleged by the complaint, a dispute had arisen between the parties concerning this property division and the complaint prayed, and only prayed, that the property rights of the parties be determined (R. 3-7, App. 1-5, see especially R. 7, App. 5).

On May 21, 1971, the district court (Harding, J.), upon stipulation, entered an order partitioning a substantial portion of the land within the resort (R. 164-167, App. 25-28). On July 23, 1971, counsel for the parties executed

---

\* Major-Blakeney Corp. was, along with the named plaintiff a corporation controlled by Robert Major and/or Joseph Krofcheck. Its interest was assigned to plaintiffs.

\*\* See Downey State Bank v. Major-Blakeney Corp., 545 P.2d 507 (Utah 1976).

a stipulation agreeing to a partition of the remaining land (R. 203-207, App. 29-32).

The July 23, 1971 stipulation further provided that with respect to certain parcels "being acquired" by the parties under "executory real estate contracts" and in turn "being sold to third party purchasers," that, "for the protection of the existing original sellers and third party purchasers," the defendants would "apply third party purchaser proceeds to original seller obligations" to the extent they were "not heretofore assigned."

Based upon that stipulation the district court executed, also on July 23, 1971, a "Judgment on Stipulation" (R. 208-214, App. 32-35). Both the Stipulation and the Judgment were prepared by plaintiffs' counsel (R. 749, App. 54) on plaintiffs' counsel's letterhead. The relevant portions of the Stipulation read as follows:

8. That the parties hereto recognize that there are presently several executory real estate contracts involved in the Park City West project wherein property is being acquired for the project from original sellers and certain properties within these original acquisitions are being sold to third party purchasers. With respect to these transactions, it is hereby agreed and stipulated as follows:

A. That for the protection of the existing original sellers and third party purchasers the defendants shall without restriction or limitation, except as herein provided, apply third party purchaser proceeds to original seller obligations.

B. On receipt of third party proceeds not heretofore assigned\* and pending disbursements

---

\* Inserted by hand in the original.

thereof to original seller obligations, the defendants shall deposit said proceeds in a separate trust account the establishment, terms and conditions of withdrawal therefrom to be subject to the approval of plaintiff. It is the intent hereof that said proceeds are to be segregated from the general funds, accounts and expenditures of defendants and applied only to original seller obligations, and are to be received and held in trust by the defendants to insure performance of the obligations to original sellers.

\* \* \*

The July 23rd Judgment reads, in relevant part:

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that for the protection of the existing original sellers and third party purchasers the defendants shall without restriction or limitation, except as herein provided, apply third party purchaser proceeds to original seller obligations

A. On receipt of third party proceeds not heretofore assigned\* and pending disbursements thereof to original seller obligations, the defendants shall deposit said proceeds in a separate trust account the establishment, terms and conditions of withdrawal therefrom to be subject to the approval of plaintiff. It is the intent hereof that said proceeds are to be segregated from the general funds, accounts and expenditures of defendants and applied only to original seller obligations, and are to be received and held in trust by the defendants to insure performance of the obligations to original sellers.

\* \* \*

It should be noted that despite the crucial importance of the status of "executory real estate contracts" "existing original sellers," "third party purchaser proceeds" and whether they had been "heretofore assigned" neither the Stipulation nor the Judgment set forth in generality or detail what "executory real estate contracts" there were,

---

\* Inserted by hand in the original.

who the "existing original sellers" were, what "third party purchaser proceeds" there were and to what extent they had been "heretofore assigned."

This Stipulation and Judgment were entered on the record without the knowledge or consent of Ensign Company or Robert Ensign, the sole general partner of defendant-appellant (R. 813-815, App. 65-67). Indeed prior to the entry of the Stipulation and Judgment, Ensign Company and Ensign had assigned all of their interest to the other defendants and were no longer in management of the project (R. 814, App. 66).

In June 1974, the plaintiffs set in motion various proceedings which ultimately resulted in the judgment from which defendant now appeals. The first step was to obtain, ex parte, an order to show cause (R. 389, App. 36). Upon hearing the district judge refused to cite defendants for contempt and otherwise continued the matter without date (R. 401). The matter was heard again on October 23, 1974, and the district court (Harding, J.) held that while it appeared that obligations due to sellers of the land had not in some cases been paid, plaintiffs had failed to show that defendants had received any third party purchaser proceeds which should have been applied to such obligations, or that such proceeds had been diverted. The district court also declined to enforce the underlying January 1967 agreement because "the provisions of those documents have not been incorporated in toto in the order or judgment in this cause, and are not now

before the court for consideration." The order to show cause was dismissed (R. 404-405, App. 37-39).

The matter was heard again on February 27, 1975 on plaintiffs' motion (R. 601, App. 53) to enforce the Stipulation and Judgment (in support of which plaintiffs filed a 158 page affidavit, R. 441-598). At this time Dr. Joseph Kroft claimed an interest as assignee of plaintiffs. Following this hearing the plaintiffs mysteriously obtained an "order" of April 8, 1975, without prior notice to defendants, and not received by defendants until May 16, 1975 (R. 808, App. 62). For unexplained reasons the original April 8, 1975 "order" is not in the record. Based upon that so-called "order" plaintiff obtained, also ex parte, a writ of execution against the defendants in the sum of \$73,653.53 (R. 426-427). No money judgment had then been entered.

The ex parte April 8, 1975 "order," upon which plaintiffs obtained their execution, in relevant part reads:

Plaintiffs' motion . . . having come on for hearing . . . on February 27 . . . and 28, 1975 . . . and the court . . . having determined . . . it [is] the duty of the defendants to pay and discharge the purchase money obligations on the land divided to plaintiff . . ., some of which obligations are now in default; now, therefore,

IT IS HEREBY ORDERED that within 14 days from February 27, 1975 . . . the defendants shall certify in writing . . . the amounts of principal and interest . . . currently due . . . upon original purchase money obligations encompassing land divided to said plaintiff . . . sufficient to obtain releases of property to said plaintiff . . .,

that plaintiffs' motion for leave to execute, be, and the same is hereby, granted as to the amounts

herein referred to sufficient to discharge outstanding purchase money obligations . . . ,

that should defendants fail to so provide the said balances currently due . . . or should there be a valid, verified difference between such balances, to that extent the balances certified to by the original purchase money obligees shall be taken as the correct amounts. . . . (R. 800-801, App. 59-60)

Defendants' counsel, when they learned of the so-called April 8 "order" immediately sought to have the court vacate it and the writ of execution (R. 428-438, App. 39-47). They were unsuccessful (R. 766, App. 54-55).

The first time defendant-appellant received notice of the above-mentioned proceedings was when Robert Ensign was served in California with a notice of sister state judgment in the amount of \$73,653.53 on September 28, 1976 (R. 814-815, App. 67). Not only is Ensign Co. named as a defendant in this sister state judgment but also, for the first time, is Robert Ensign himself (R. 786, App. 58). As an attachment to defendant-appellant's motion for relief, appending the California filing, the April 8, 1975 "order," as a xerox copy, first appears in the record (R. 800-801, App. 59-60).

The April 8, 1975 "order" is a curious document. It did not find that defendants were justly indebted to plaintiffs in a sum certain and it does not enter judgment for such sum. Instead, the "order" found that defendants had the obligation to discharge purchase money obligations encompassing the lands earlier divided to plaintiffs, and



gave permission to plaintiffs to execute in such amount. It is these two provisions of the "order" that colored all subsequent proceedings in the case. Each judge who dealt with the case thereafter felt bound by the terms of the "order."

This "order," prepared by plaintiffs' counsel, makes no attempt to deal with important terms of the July 23, 1971 Stipulation and Judgment such as "existing original sellers," "executory real estate contracts" or "receipt of third party proceeds not heretofore assigned."

More importantly, the transcripts of the February 27 and 28, 1975 hearings recited in the "order" provide no basis for the "order." The district court's rulings as reflected by those transcripts were that plaintiffs were free to file a motion for a dollar judgment (Tr. of 2-27-75 at 57-58), the court having earlier in the hearing refused to consider plaintiffs' affidavit because it was hearsay and incompetent (Tr. of 2-27-75 at 10, 11).

Despite the fact that the April 8 "order" was not a money judgment, and despite the failure of defendants to produce certificates of amounts due on purchase money obligations, and the absence of any certificates from original sellers as to amounts due, plaintiffs, ignoring the terms of their own ex parte "order," obtained an execution in the sum of \$73,653.53 (R. 426-427).

In response to various motions of appellant attacking the April 8, 1975 "order," the district court (Leary, J.) decided on June 21, 1977 to refuse to vacate the April 8, 1975 "order," but required a hearing on notice as to the amount of any money judgment and restrained the issuance of writs of execution (R. 883-887, App. 67-72). Plaintiffs and Krofcheck thereafter filed a motion for partial summary judgment (R. 919-920, App. 73-75), which motion applied solely to the Major-Blakeney land foreclosed under the Downey State Bank mortgage, and ultimately sold at sheriff's sale.

The factual record made by plaintiffs in support of their motion was only that the land had been sold at a foreclosure sale and that it cost plaintiffs \$98,000 to acquire it from the foreclosure sale purchasers (Krofcheck affidavit, R. 921-923, App. 75-77). The record is barren of any suggestion that there were any proceeds from "third party purchasers" of this land, or, if so, that they had not been "heretofore assigned," or that if received by defendants that they were misapplied. Indeed the record suggests that this land was not the subject of an executory real estate contract (R. 534, App. 50A), and was never the subject of sales to third parties by the defendants. Plaintiffs'

earlier affidavit itself, which purports to show all third party purchasers, demonstrates that none of this land was sold to "third party purchasers."\* It also shows that the largest parcel included in the July 23, 1971 Stipulated Judgment, the land acquired from Taylor Lott, was sold to one Gaskin, on a real estate contract, and that the contract was assigned by the parties before the Stipulated Judgment was entered (R. 559-560, App. 51-52). This contract, by plaintiff's own showing, was 43 percent in amount of all "third party purchaser" contracts (R. 461, App. 47-48). The record further reflects that Ensign Co. and Ensign have had no dealings with this land and have collected no monies relating to it since long before the Stipulation and Judgment (R. 954-955, App. 78-79).

Nevertheless, the district court (Sawaya, J.) entered partial summary judgment for \$98,000 against defendants on September 6, 1977 (R. 1016-1018, App. 79-82). It is from this judgment and the prior interlocutory order leading up to it that appellant now seeks relief.

---

\* Major in his affidavit identified all third party purchaser contracts (R. 448). It is apparent from those contracts that none of them involve the Major-Blakeney land (R. 570-597). Plaintiffs, of course, never attempted to show that there were third party purchasers of the Major-Blakeney land.

## ARGUMENT

- I. DEFENDANT IS NOT BOUND BY THE JULY 23, 1971 STIPULATION AND JUDGMENT BECAUSE DEFENDANT WAS NOT A PARTY TO AND HAD NO KNOWLEDGE OF THE STIPULATION.

The April 8, 1975 "order" and September 6, 1977 partial summary judgment from which defendant now appeal rest upon and purport to enforce the July 23, 1971 Stipulation and Judgment. Although the defendants' attorney signed the stipulation and acquiesced in the judgment, the appellant had not authorized its attorney to do so, and, indeed, had no knowledge of what was being done. The record reflects why this occurred. Robert Ensign had very early on assigned his individual interest to Ensign Company, a limited partnership. Ensign Company thereafter assigned its interest to Ski Park City West in exchange for stock in that corporation (R. 812-813, App. 64-65). By the end of June 1971, Ensign Company had exchanged its stock in Ski Park City West for stock in Life Resources, Inc., which then assumed management of the project in place of Ensign (R. 814, App. 66). Thus by July 23, 1971, Ensign Company, was to all appearances out of the litigation and the failure to keep it notified of developments becomes understandable. When defendant-appellant learned of the Stipulation and Judgment, it took immediate steps toward overturning them. Courts widely observe the common law rule that the attorney does not have implied authority to waive the substantive rights of the party by the compromise settlement agreement.

Grossman v. Will, 10 Wash. App. 141, 516 P.2d 1063, 1069 (1973).

In Radosevich v. Pegues, 133 Colo. 148, 292 P.2d 741 (1956), the Colorado Supreme Court applied this rule and reversed a judgment based upon a stipulation of counsel of which the client had no knowledge. The court observed that

[t]he general rule is that an attorney may not compromise his client's case without express authority.

Id. 292 P.2d at 743. The court found the judgment entered in accordance with the unauthorized stipulation to be no barrier to reopening the case, and summarily overturned it. Accord, e.g., Bice v. Stevens, 160 Cal. App. 2d 222, 325 P.2d 244 (1958); Robinson v. Hiles, 119 Cal. App. 2d 666, 260 P.2d 194 (1953); Coon v. Ginsberg, 32 Colo. App. 206, 509 P.2d 1293 (1973); Muncey v. Children's Home Finding & Aid Soc., 84 Idaho 147, 369 P.2d 586 (1962); National Valve & Mfg. Co. v. Wright, 205 Okla. 571, 240 P.2d 766 (1951); Annot., 30 A.L.R.2d 945 (1953).

This Court has recognized that an attorney may not, without authorization, compromise his client's claims. In Rackham v. Rackham, 119 Utah 593, 230 P.2d 566 (1951), this Court said

[we agree] that an attorney has no authority to enter into a stipulation relative to substantial rights of his client without his client's consent  
. . . .

Id. 230 P.2d at 570. Although this Court's statement in Rackham is dicta because in that case the client was present in court when her attorney made the stipulation and failed to object, it leaves no doubt that had the client not acquiesced in the stipulation, she would not have been bound by it. This Court has thus approved the rule that a California court has called "almost universal." Bice v. Stevens, 160 Cal. App. 2d 222, 325 P.2d 244, 250 (1958).

The Washington Court of Appeals has recently articulated the due process foundation of the rule. An attorney must have implied authority to enter into stipulations and waivers concerning procedural matters or our legal system would collapse from inefficiency. But a client has a due process right guaranteed by the United States and Utah constitutions, U. S. Const. Amend. 14, Utah Const. Art. I, § 7, to his day in court when substantial rights are at stake. An attorney "has no authority to waive any substantial rights of his client." In re Houts, 7 Wash. App. 476, 499 P.2d 1276, 1279 (1972). The rule that an unauthorized settlement entered into by an attorney will not be enforced is a corollary of the client's due process right to have substantial claims determined in court if he desires. The mere employment of an attorney will not be taken as a waiver of that right.

Because the defendant-appellant in the case before this Court had no knowledge of the unauthorized stipulation

affecting substantial rights of its entered into by its attorney, the lower court erred in issuing an order and partial summary judgment based upon the Stipulation and accompanying Judgment. This denial of defendant's-appellant's due process rights alone is sufficient ground for this Court to vacate the order and partial summary judgment below. At the very least, the question of whether the defendant-appellant authorized its attorney to execute the stipulation is an unresolved question of fact which should have barred the entry of a partial summary judgment.

II. THE DISTRICT COURT ERRED BY ENTERING A SUMMARY JUDGMENT IN FAVOR OF PLAINTIFFS WHEN THE RECORD FAILED TO SHOW THAT PLAINTIFFS WERE ENTITLED TO JUDGMENT AS A MATTER OF LAW, AND WHERE CRUCIAL ISSUES OF FACT EXISTED.

A. This Court Has Repeatedly Stressed The Fundamental Rule That Any Material Issue of Fact Is An Absolute Bar To Summary Judgment.

The district court, in granting plaintiffs' motion for partial summary judgment, ignored the stringent standard imposed by Rule 56 of the Utah Rules of Civil Procedure and this Court's interpretation of that rule. Rule 56(c) provides in pertinent part:

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