1978

Park City Utah Corporation, A Corporation, Et Al.,
Joseph L. Krofcheck, M.D v. Ensign Company, A
Limited Partnership; Ski Park City West, Inc., A
Corporation; Aspen Grove, Inc. (Name Changed
To National Property Management, Inc.), A
Corporation, Ensign Company, A Limited
Partnership, (Supra) : Respondents' Brief

Utah Supreme Court

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

Thus, the subject November 6th Order effectively confirmed the prior action of the court below in these terms:

" ...July 23, 1971 [Judgment]...defendants [Appellant et al.] were ordered to discharge certain monetary obligations to the original sellers of the plaintiffs' [Respondents] property, are final and valid judgments binding upon all parties...the time for appeal of within proceeding having expired in the year 1971...Joseph L. Krofcheck [a Respondent]..acquired his interest in the aforementioned real property as a purchaser from plaintiff [a Respondent]...and as an assignee of certain rights of said plaintiffs in and to such judgments-----defendants' motion... seeking to vacate this court's prior order of April 8, 1975, and the execution thereof [May 15, 1975, Writ]...are hereby denied." (Emphasis and brackets added)

November 6, 1975, Order, court below (supra.)

The Summary Of Point II

The above discussion establishes that the subject November 6, 1975, Order was probably a non-appealable order, but, in any event, Appellant failed to take any action toward perfecting an appeal within the time permitted by Rule 73 (a) U.R.C.P..

Said Order, again, validated the July 23, 1971, stipulated judgment and the April 8, 1975, Order. Said ruling also reaffirmed that the Appellant had to discharge the monetary obligations on Respondents' property, and in assessing such liability the Order clearly states that the decrees are "binding upon all parties" (supra.).

Respondent Joseph L. Krofcheck, M.D., as a judgment assignee in the within proceeding, is identified at this juncture in the case.

POINT III: THE JUNE 21, 1977, MEMORANDUM DECISION, WITH ORDER OF SEPTEMBER 2, 1977 THEREON, ARE NON-APPEALABLE AND CONFIRM THE PRIOR DECREES HEREIN.

The lower court's June 21, 1977, Memorandum Decision [Record: 883] together with its implementing Order dated September 2, 1977 [Record: 1029],

overrule Appellant's motion that sought to vacate an order, which order itself was overruling two other motions filed by Appellant (June 5th and July 11, 1975) that sought to vacate still another Order (April 8, 1975) and its execution.

Only the last mentioned Order of April 8, 1975, acted on the "substantial rights" of the parties, which Appellant failed to appeal. Like the November 6, 1975, Order before it (POINT II, supra.), the subject June 21, 1977, Memorandum Decision merely refused to act as to such substantial rights, by denying action urged by Appellant, (Its October 12, 1976, motion; supra; Statement of Facts).

Hence, for the same legal reasons set forth under POINT II hereof, relating to non-appealability, the subject Memorandum Decision, and Order thereon, are non-appealable rulings. Only the decrees discussed under POINT I are appealable, which were, of course, not appealed.

Beyond the appealability issue of the said Memorandum Decision, the lower court, acting through the Honorable Peter Leary, recognized it could not set aside the prior November 6, 1975, Order of Judge Harding's (supra.), a colleague on the District Court bench, as requested by Appellant's motion of October 12, 1976. The controlling Utah decisions have repeated said rule of law several times in the recent past in these cases:

Harward v. Harward, (Utah 1974), 526 P2d 1183
Peterson v. Peterson, (Ut.1974), 530 P2d 821
State of Utah v. Morgan, (Ut.1974), 527 P2d 225

Leaving the said validity issue, it is necessary to observe exactly what effect said Memorandum Decision had on the within proceedings. Aside from denying Appellant's motion of October 12th (supra.), which upheld all prior decrees and orders of the court,

there remained essentially one question for current resolution, namely: what is the present monetary amount due from Appellant to Respondents under the lower court's decrees herein?

Said current amount due from Appellant was claimed to be \$98,000.00, by Respondents, before Judge Leary [Record: 836]. However, the prior Writ of Execution was for \$73,653.53, [Record: 426].

Therefore, Judge Leary, of the court below, ordered that a hearing be held, after notice, to ascertain exactly what was due under the lower court's various decrees. This was the substantive, net effect of the subject Memorandum Decision and Order thereon dated September 2, 1977. Such issue was narrowly drawn and the procedure for resolving the same spelled out by requiring a hearing in the future on said matter. This was the posture of the case on June 21, 1977, the date Judge Leary executed his Memorandum Decision.

The Summary Of Point III

Our foregoing evaluation shows that the June 21, 1977, Memorandum Decision and September 2, 1977, Order thereon, are most likely non-appealable rulings. However, despite this condition Judge Leary could not set aside Judge Harding's prior rulings, under Utah law, and of course did not do so.

After demonstrating the propriety of Judge Leary's subject rulings, it is seen that only a single issue remained for current resolution, as of June 21, 1977, involving the amount outstanding due from Appellant to Respondents under the lower court decrees. Said matter was to be determined in a hearing, after notice thereof. All else stated by Judge Leary merely confirmed the prior decrees.

POINT IV: THE LOWER COURT'S SEPTEMBER 6, 1977 JUDGMENT AND FINDINGS ARE FULLY SUPPORTED BY THE RECORD AND UTAH LAW.

On June 21, 1977, the lower court had rendered its latest decision (POINT III, supra.) in these proceedings, to the effect that prior orders and decrees executed by it were valid and subsisting, and, that a hearing must be held to determine the current, outstanding balance due from Appellant (et al.) to Respondents.

Pursuant to said edict of the court below, Respondents filed a motion for partial summary judgment [Record: 919] addressing the only current question open for determination, to wit: how much money did Appellant presently owe to Respondents?

Attached to Respondents' said motion were affidavits and exhibits that clearly and unequivocally showed how much was due, on what basis it was due and why it was due from Appellant, inter alios.

However, when Appellant replied to Respondents' affidavits and exhibits they did so with a single, self-serving affidavit which did not address the material facts before the lower court [Record: 954] involving Respondents' motion for partial summary judgment. In essence, here are the irrelevant points set forth in Appellant's said counter-affidavit executed by one Robert W. Ensign:

1.) Ensign Company [Appellant] is now dissolved. (COMMENT: A conclusion without stating evidentiary facts; and, wholly immaterial).

2.) Ensign Company has not had anything to do with the real property or financial transactions which is the subject matter of the Respondents' motion since the fall of 1969. (COMMENT: Two years later, in 1971, the within Judgment on Stipulation held Ensign Company liable as a named defendant, relative to many transactions and parcels of land)

3.) Ensign Company had no dealings with funds received from the sale of certain real property, and makes no claim on said monies. (COMMENT: Under the July 23, 1971, judgment, Ensign was liable for the funds and sale of said property, and if it did not involve itself with such matters it did so irresponsibly. In any case, has nothing to do with the amount of liability to Respondents).

4.) Ensign Company had no dealings with the Respondent Joseph L. Krofcheck, M.D. since 1969. (COMMENT: Does not change or affect Krofcheck's status as a judgment assignee, nor Ensign's status as a judgment debtor).

5. It is Robert Ensign's opinion that the subject-matter land is not worth \$98,000.00. (COMMENT: The only point involved is what it cost to obtain the release of the property, despite what it may be worth. Said allegation, is merely Ensign's unsubstantiated opinion at best.).

6. Ensign Company did not encumber the Respondents' property. (COMMENT: Totally irrelevant. All the documentation in the record admits that third parties had the encumbrances. It was Ensign's responsibility to pay them off).

From the foregoing analysis of Appellant's only counter-affidavit, we easily see that said allegations, whether in good form or not, neither directly or indirectly refute the narrow allegations set forth by Respondents with their motion for partial summary judgment [Record 921-935], as called for by the lower court's June 21, 1977, Memorandum Decision (supra.), as follows:

A.) Parcels 8, 9, 10, 11 and 12 described in the July 23, 1971, Judgment on Stipulation, is the real property upon which the Appellant

failed to pay the outstanding financial obligations due, as required by the lower court's decrees. (COMMENT: Nowhere does Appellant ever dispute this allegation of Respondents.)

B.) Respondents paid the sum of \$98,000.00 cash to recover said real property, after Appellant, et al., failed to pay anything whatever toward said property's release. (COMMENT: This is not denied. Only an unsubstantiated opinion concerning value is offered by the Appellant).

C.) Appellant, et al., have at no time reimbursed or otherwise compensated Respondents for any portion of the \$98,000.00 expended by the latter on Appellant's obligation covered by the lower court decrees. (COMMENT: Appellant has never denied this).

Thus, Respondents' said affidavits and exhibits stand undisputed. All that is left for the court below is to ascertain if said uncontroverted facts are a basis for recovery under the court's decrees, as a matter of law.

Based upon the aforesaid pleadings and evidentiary material, a hearing was held on July 18, 1977, before the Honorable James S. Sawaya, of the court below. Appellant was as unresponsive to the material facts presented by Respondents' motion, as it had been before the hearing through the Robert W. Ensign affidavit. Hence, Appellant's case must rest on whatever legal effect said Ensign affidavit has on this case, and nothing else, respecting the Respondents' motion for partial summary judgment.

Therefore, the Appellant has failed to meet the criteria imposed by Rule 56 (e) U.R.C.P., in purportedly opposing the said motion for summary judgment, since it has failed to: "set forth specific facts showing that there is a genuine issue for

trial. If he does not so respond, summary judgment, if appropriate, shall be entered against him ", (Rule 56 (e), supra.).

Appellant's said counter-affidavit is filled with opinion and unsupported conclusions, which this Utah case deems inadequate:

" Affidavit does not comport with the requirements of this rule [Rule 56 (e)] where it reveals no evidentiary facts but merely reflects the unsubstantiated opinions and conclusions in regard to the transactions." (Emphasis ours)

Walker v. Rocky Mountain Recreation Corp., 508 P2d 538 (Utah)

Even if one were to construe Ensign's affidavit (supra.) as containing some competent recitals of evidentiary fact, it certainly does not contain any that are material and responsive to Respondents' affidavits and exhibits, annexed to their summary judgment motion.

Besides the main award of \$98,000.00 embraced by the lower court's Judgment, granting Respondents' said motion, said instrument also set forth findings which Appellant has likewise attacked in the court below. Before defending on the merits of such attack, the following doctrine should be raised:

" The traditional function of an appellate court is merely to apply the law to findings of fact made below...the appellate court is ordinarily without authority to make independent findings..."

5 Am Jur2d 337, Section 900

The specificity of the lower court's findings set forth in its subject September 6, 1977, Judgment, is fully supported by the record in this action that preceded said Judgment; and, as to those portions of said record particularly relied upon by the lower court, acting by and through the Honorable James S. Sawaya, Judge, the same were either unchallenged by Appellant, or were beyond challenge by reason of the Appellant's failure to take an appeal therefrom.

It follows that the next question on this subject should inquire: what precisely did Judge Sawaya find, and on what basis did he find it? Referring to said September 6, 1977, Judgment document itself [Record: 1016], the outline below discloses the substance of each finding and the corresponding basis for the same in the record:

Re: Findings 1 and 2: The validity of the lower court's prior decrees, the binding effect thereof on all parties herein and the obligation of Appellant and the other Defendants to obtain the release of Respondents' real property awarded in this action, are matters clearly raised and adjudicated in those specific terms by some or all of the lower court's proceedings before entry of the said September 6, 1977, Judgment and findings, (See July 23, 1971 Judgment on Stipulation; April 8, 1975, Order; November 6, 1975, Order).

Re: Finding 3: The fact that Appellant's default under the lower court's decrees would compel them to legally remedy that default, as provided by law and equity, is fundamental. Moreover, one of the said decrees specifically contemplates that should Appellant and the other defendants fail to meet their payment obligations to Respondents, "it is without prejudice to plaintiff [Respondents] invoking all of its rights and remedies against defendants in the event of breach or default", (See July 23, 1971, Judgment on Stipulation, bottom of page 7).

Re: Findings 4, 5, and 6: The failure of the Appellant, et al., to meet their subject financial obligations to Respondents as to parcels 8 through 12, Respondents' payment of \$98,000.00 to recover such land and the fact that no part of that sum was ever reimbursed, are facts left undisputed by Appellant's counter-affidavit to Respondents'

motion for partial summary judgment, (See this POINT IV, supra.).

Re: Finding 7: Dr. Joseph L. Krofcheck's status as a proper judgment assignee herein has never been challenged, although said fact was set forth in both the lower court's orders; and, also a direct statement thereof appeared with Respondents' motion (See November 6, 1975, Order and Krofcheck affidavit annexed to motion for partial summary judgment, supra.).

Re: Finding 8: The fact a change has occurred in the outstanding balance due Respondents is not disputed, thereby necessitating an amendment to the original Writ of Execution, (See June 21, 1977, Memorandum Decision).

The Summary Of Point IV

Therefore, just prior to Judge Sawaya entering the case, in the Summer of 1977, at the trial court level, there remained a single issue for determination, namely: what was the current outstanding balance due from Appellant to Respondents under the prior decrees? Thereupon, Respondents presented their affidavits and exhibits showing they had paid out \$98,000.00 cash to recover land awarded earlier in this case, an obligation which really devolved upon Appellant and the other defendants herein. In reply to Respondents' said evidence, Appellant confronted extraneous issues having no material bearing on the former's motion for partial summary judgment, yet failed to dispute in any way Respondents' said evidence.

After the hearing on Respondents' motion for partial summary judgment, the lower court reviewed the files herein and developed findings which were founded on those parts of the record with substantial evidentiary and/or judicial support, thereby removing the competency

of said findings as an issue in these appellate proceedings, (5 Am Jur2d 337, supra.).

By virtue of said unchallenged facts presented by Respondents with their motion for partial summary judgment and the clear record before it, the lower court's September 6, 1977, Judgment and findings are fully supported by Utah law.

POINT V: CERTAIN SPECIFIC DEFENSES IN APPELLANT'S BRIEF WARRANT REFUTATION.

Re: Appellant's Claim That It
Had No Knowledge Of The July 23,
1971, Judgment On Stipulation

Where Appellant asserts that it was not bound by the basic July 23, 1971, Judgment on Stipulation because said party had no knowledge thereof, although its counsel executed the same, we must observe that there is nothing whatever in the record on appeal to substantiate this claim whether by Appellant's affidavit, or otherwise, nor so much as a hint therein that said party even makes the claim in the first place. Instead, we have Appellant's present cocounsel only now raising the said issue merely by way of argument herein nearly seven years after the fact. In addition to being barred by the doctrine of laches, it should be pointed out that such issue being raised for the first time on appeal in the form of argument herein is not evidence and on that basis is likewise barred from consideration by this Honorable Supreme Court.

Re: Appellant's Raising Of A Wide
Variety Of Factual Issues

Appellant's argument that there were "crucial issues" of fact to be tried which would bar entry of the subject summary judgment by the court below, fails to cite what facts were at issue that were material to the

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